
 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

CABINET DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 

COUNCILLOR M T BOWEN 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR COMMUNITIES 

 
 Wednesday, 14 July 2021  

 
1 2021/04 - ENERGY COMPANY OBLIGATION - REVISED STATEMENT OF 

INTENT 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
 

Cabinet Delegated Decision 
 

14 July 2021 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Attached Appendix 1: Energy Company Obligation Statement of Intent   

 
1. Reason for the Report:  

 
Revised SOI in relation to extended eligibility criteria for affordable warmth 
schemes currently available within the Staffordshire Moorlands district. 

 
2. Recommendation 

To adopt the revised statement of intent; attached (Appendix 1: Energy 

Company Obligation Statement of Intent) 

3 Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The Energy Company Obligation (ECO) is a government energy efficiency 

scheme to help reduce carbon emissions and tackle fuel poverty. ECO creates a 

legal obligation on energy suppliers to improve the energy efficiency of eligible 

private sector households. The Government scheme has been revised (ECO3) 

and now covers the period 2018 – 2022. 

 

3.2 The Government have established criteria which have to be met by households 

seeking support through ECO and has extended the power for local authorities 

via the adoption of a ‘statement of intent’ to set criteria for 25% of the funds 

available to the area (known as ECO Flex) 

 
3.3  The council adopted a statement of intent in relation to the current scheme 

(ECO3), and it is proposed that Staffordshire Moorlands District Council now 

TITLE: Energy Company Obligation – revised 

Statement of Intent  

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Mike Bowen – Communities 

Portfolio Holder  

OFFICER: Mark Forrester (Head of Service, Democratic 

and Community Services) 

WARDS:   All 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



adopt a revised statement of intent (appendix 1) to take into account the Green 

Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Schemes currently available across 

Staffordshire and within Staffordshire Moorlands.  

 

3.4  The Council has already contracted Beat the Cold to provide affordable warmth 

advice and services to households in Staffordshire Moorlands and they will 

continue to assist with the management of the ECO Flex scheme and, in 

addition, the identification of streets and households that would benefit from 

affordable warmth measures through the Staffordshire Warm Homes Fund and 

Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Scheme phases 1a, 1b and 2.  

 
4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 This report relates to the Corporate Aims:  

    

 Provide Quality Services in Partnership with Communities  

 

5. Options and Analysis 

 

5.1 To adopt the revised statement of intent as set out in appendix 1. 

(Recommended) 

 

5.2 That the revised statement is not adopted (not recommended as some local 

households would lose the opportunity for support).  

 

6. Implications 

 

6.1

  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

 

None 

 

6.2 Workforce 

 

None 

 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

 

The criteria established through the statement of intent will assist 

households not currently eligible for the main ECO3 scheme. Beat 

the Cold will collect information on those taking up the scheme and 

this data will be used to assess its uptake and impact on groups 

with protected characteristics.  

 

6.4 Financial Considerations 

Page 4



 

There are no implications for the Council. Beat the Cold will 

support the schemes through their current service to Staffordshire 

Moorlands District Council.  

 

6.5 Legal 

 

The key requirements on flexible eligibility are set out in a statutory 

instrument: Electricity and Gas (Energy Company Obligation) 

Order 2018 (referred to as ‘the ECO3 Order’). 

 

6.6 Sustainability 

 

Access to gas mains infrastructure, upgrading of current heating 

systems and the installation of energy saving measures in 

households will help to increase energy efficiency whilst reducing 

fuel poverty (locally) and carbon emissions.  

 

6.7 

 

 

 

Internal and External Consultation 

 

Beat the Cold works in partnership with local housing, health and 

social care agencies and the Staffordshire Warm Homes Fund. 

The operation of the scheme will be reviewed; informed by 

experience.  

 

6.8 

 

 

 

Risk Assessment 

 

No significant risks have been identified for the Council.  

 

7. Background and Detail 

 

7.1     The Energy Company Obligation (ECO) is a government energy 

efficiency scheme to help reduce carbon emissions and tackle fuel 

poverty. The scheme began in April 2013, changes to the scheme 

(ECO2t) occurred in 2017, and applied measures installed from 1st April 

2017 to September 2018. The Government has now introduced a 

revised scheme known as ECO 3 which runs from 2018 – 2022.  

 

7.2        ECO creates a legal obligation on energy suppliers to improve the 

energy efficiency of households through the establishment of two 

distinct targets:  

 

Page 5



7.2.1 The Carbon Emissions Reduction Obligation (CERO) which 

focuses on the promotion of hard to heat homes.  

 

 7.2.2 The Home Heating Cost Reduction Obligation (HHCRO) which 

focuses on the production of measures which improve the 

ability of low income and vulnerable households to heat their 

homes. This includes the actions that result in heating savings 

such as the replacement or repair of a boiler.  

 

7.3  There are set criteria which have to be met by a householder seeking 

support through ECO. The focus is on Private Sector Housing (either 

owner occupied or private rented).  

 

7.4  For the period running from April 2018 – September 2022 energy 

suppliers   are able to achieve up to 25% of their Affordable Warmth 

target in households falling outside of the nationally set eligibility 

criteria. The eligibility criteria to be met by households for this 25% of 

ECO funds are set by local authorities through a ‘Statement of Intent’ 

known as ECO Flex. The idea is that local authorities are able to direct 

funding based on specific local need.  

 

7.5  Having previously adopted a Statement of Intent for the ECO scheme, 

it is proposed that Staffordshire Moorlands District Council adopts a 

revised Statement of Intent (Appendix 1). Currently, there is a 

disconnect between published government eligibility for heating and 

insulation measures, and the existing Statements of Intent. The 

proposed document would align these differences, and would give Beat 

the Cold a single criterion that can be used across the area in which 

they operate.  

 

7.6  There is now a greater emphasis on a green recovery, and a need to 

increase the take up of low carbon technologies. Extended eligibility, 

through the adoption of the Statement of Intent, allows the Council to 

increase the number of households who will benefit from the scheme. 

 

7.7  The Council entered into a one year service level agreement from April   

1st 2021 with Beat the Cold charity to deliver an affordable warmth 

advice service to households in Staffordshire Moorlands. Following the 

adoption of the previous Statement of Intent by the Council, Beat the 

Cold successfully managed the local scheme (verifying householder 

eligibility and retaining records for reporting and evaluation).  

 

7.8  Beat the Cold have used their knowledge of Staffordshire Moorlands 

and experience of the ECO scheme and other available affordable 

Page 6



warmth funding,  to draft the revised statement of intent which it is 

proposed that the Council adopts (Appendix. 1: Energy Company 

Obligation Statement of Intent).  

 
 

Mark Trillo  
MARK TRILLO 

Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) and Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 

 
 
   

   
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

STATEMENT OF INTENT (SOI) 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLNDS DISTRICT COUNCIL, CRITIERIA FOR ENERGY 

EFFICIENCY SCHEMES WHERE LOCAL AUTHORITY DISCRETION IS 

PERMITTED:  

VERSION TWO: INSERT PUBLICATION DATE AND URL TO THE WEBSITE 

HERE 

This statement sets out the district council’s eligibility thresholds for energy efficiency 

measures delivered in its geographical area. It is to provide clarity and consistency 

across all schemes for which local authority discretion is permitted. 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Fuel Poverty  

Fuel poverty in England is now measured using the Low Income Low Energy 

Efficiency (LILEE) indicator rather than the old Low Income High Costs (LIHC) 

indicator. 

Under the LILEE indicator, a household is considered to be fuel poor if: 

They are living in a property with a fuel poverty energy efficiency rating of band D or 

below. 

and 

When they spend the required amount to heat their home, they are left with a 

residual income below the official poverty line. 

There are 3 important elements in determining whether a household is fuel poor: 

 household income 

 household energy requirements 

 fuel prices 

In publishing is discretionary eligibility, this authority is looking to support those that 

may fall outside general eligibility criteria, but who are still at risk of becoming fuel 

poor. 

 

This document also acknowledges the part that energy efficiency schemes have in 

helping to achieve carbon reduction targets.  

 

1.2 Which scheme can discretion be used for? 

 

As of the date of publication, this discretion is intended to be used for: 

Page 9



 

 Energy Company Obligation 

 Warm Homes Fund 

 Green Homes Grants 

Up until the date of its re-issue, this statement should also be used for all future 

energy efficiency schemes, unless criteria for such schemes specifically forbids such 

action. 

The final decision on whether a household receives a measure under an energy 
efficiency scheme is made by the scheme deliverer or their agents/contractors. 
Eligibility will not guarantee installation of measures, as the final decision will depend 
on:  

 The criteria set out for each individual energy efficiency scheme. 

 

2. Eligibility Criteria    

To be eligible for discretionary eligibility, a household must have: 

 A low income as determined by table 1 below, and an EPC, or expected EPC 

of D, or below 

OR 

 (For energy company obligation schemes ONLY) A low income as 

determined by table 1 below, and a health condition known to be exacerbated 

by living in a cold home, as detailed in National Institute for Health and Care 

Excellence Guideline NG6: Excess winter deaths and illness and the health 

risks associated with cold homes 

OR 

 Given the nature of the individuals circumstances, be deemed by the local 

authority to be eligible, as not to, would knowingly cause unnecessary harm to 

a persons physical or mental wellbeing. 

 

2.1 Criteria for identifying households in Fuel Poverty - Low Income 

The question of how much money is the minimum needed to just exist varies 

considerably as it depends on the size of the household, where someone lives, in 

what type of accommodation and on the individual’s basic needs. Therefore, the only 

reasonably reliable indicator of poverty that is generally accepted is that of relative 

poverty.   

Page 10



 

This local authority has chosen to use an uplift from the permitted income from the 

current ECO programme for those in receipt of child benefit, as its baseline. It has 

also taken account of the 30k permitted income level for the current green homes 

grant programme, for individual homeowners. 

Table 1: 

“Income” means annual gross income from all sources, including housing-

related benefits, before tax. This should be determined based on the preceding 

annual tax year which runs from 6 the April to 5th April of the following year. 

 

Household 

Composition 

Permitted Gross Household Income.  

1 Adult £30,000 

And 1 Child £34,838 

And 2 Child £39,788 

And 3 Child £44,738 

And 4+ Child £49,668 

2 Adults £37,914 

And 1 Child £42,538 

And 2 Child £47,488 

And 3 Child £52,438 

And 4+Child £57,388 

 

2.6 Use of discretion: 

We believe this statement of intent to be inclusive, for those that may need support 

to install energy efficiency measures in their home.  However, the council is aware 

that there may be unusual circumstances, that it could not reasonably have been 

expected to have foreseen. In these cases, the statement may exclude householders 

with a vulnerability, as an unintended consequence. The council therefore reserves 

the right to review individual cases, and provide a declaration of meeting the criteria, 

where to do otherwise would create unnecessary hardship.  

Page 11



 

Area Based Schemes: 

Where permitted to do so, this local authority wishes to set clear guidance as to the 

definition of an eligible area. The underpinning principle of defining an area as being 

eligible, is that some energy efficiency measures require an element of scale, and 

homogenous delivery to make them feasible. By excluding a small number of 

householders in an area, because they do not meet the discretionary eligibility as 

noted above, could negatively impact a significantly higher number of fuel poor 

households within the same area.  For an eligible area, the local authority will be 

looking at postcode level approvals.  

Criteria for an eligible LSOA which the postcode falls within: 

A lower super output area may be classed as eligible where using the English 

Indices of Deprivation: 

 Income deprivation of the LSOA is in the 40% of most deprived 

neighbourhoods in the country 

AND 

 For the Postcodes of the Area Based Scheme, more than 60% have a 

published EPC of D, or below.  

Council discretion: The local authority reserves the right to review area-based 

schemes on a case-by-case basis.  Where individual energy efficiency schemes 

cannot benefit the majority of fuel poor households, due to the circumstances of a 

minority none fuel poor, the local authority may exercise discretion. In such 

circumstances it will record the evidence that it has collated to reach this judgement.  

Details to be taken from Indices of Deprivation 2015 and 2019 (communities.gov.uk) 

mapping tool. 

AND 

Details to be taken from Energy Performance of Buildings Data England and Wales 

(opendatacommunities.org)  

 

3. Joint Statement of Intent 

This section is not applicable to Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. 

Page 12

http://dclgapps.communities.gov.uk/imd/iod_index.html
https://epc.opendatacommunities.org/
https://epc.opendatacommunities.org/


 

4. Referrals 

Referrals to schemes will come from a variety of sources including council 

departments, the health and social care sectors, the voluntary sector and other 

agencies.   

5. Signature 

To be inserted following approval 

6. Key Contacts 

For comments in relation to this Statement of Intent and its development please 

contact TBC: 

 Telephone: TBC 

 Email: TBC 

 Post: TBC 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 2021/04 - Energy Company Obligation - Revised Statement of Intent
	SMDC Statement of Intent 2021 - draft.v for approval FINAL


